
 

Rotherhithe Community Council 
A community safety surgery will be held at 6.30pm prior to the meeting 

please  
come along and speak to community safety wardens and safer 

neighbourhood teams.  
 
 

Thursday 20 January 2011 
7.00 pm 

Bacon's College, Timber Pond Road, Rotherhithe, London SE16 6AT 
 

Membership 
 

 

Councillor Jeff Hook (Chair) 
Councillor Wilma Nelson (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Columba Blango 
Councillor David Hubber 
Councillor Richard Livingstone 
Councillor Catherine McDonald 
Councillor Paul Noblet 
Councillor Lisa Rajan 
Councillor Michael Situ 
 

 

 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Annie Shepperd 
Chief Executive 
Date: Tuesday 11 January 2011 
 

 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item 
No. 

Title Time 

 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES  
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 

Open Agenda



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

 The Chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda. 
 

 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interest or dispensation and the nature 
of that interest or dispensation which they may have in any of the items 
under consideration at this meeting. 
 

 

5. MINUTES (Pages 4 - 9) 
 

 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 8 
December 2010. 
 

 

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY)  
 

7.10 

 The Chair to advise on any deputations or petitions received. 
 

 

7. CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNITY PRESENTATIONS  
 

7.15 

 • Consultation on Southwark Licensing Policy for sex 
establishments. 

• Consultation on Transport Plan (Local Implementation Plan) – 
there will be a information stall at the meeting. 

• Information about save our loved park from Thames Water’s 
building plans. 

 
 
 
 

 

8. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (Page 10) 
 

7.30 

 Please submit your written questions to the Neighbourhood Coordinator or 
Constitutional Officer. 
 

 

 MAIN BUSINESS 
 

 

9. UPDATE ON FAIRER FUTURE FOR ALL  
 

7.35 

10. GENERAL OVERVIEW OF HOUSING MANAGEMENT SERVICES  
 

7.45 

11. HOUSING REPAIRS  
 

7.55 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

 Officers from Housing will give an overview of the housing repairs 
service. 
 
This includes: 
• How to report repairs (representative from Vangent, Customer 

Service Centre).  
• How the process should work after the repair has been reported. 
• Key policies that are used for housing repairs e.g. caring for 

vulnerable residents. 
• Information about the complaints procedure.   
• Tenancy management functions (area manager, Rotherhithe 

Housing Office). 
 

 

 BREAK 
 

 

 This is an opportunity for residents to speak to Councillors and Officers. 
 

 

12. LOCAL PARKING AMENDMENTS (Pages 11 - 24) 
 

8.15 

 EXECUTIVE DECISION 
 
Members to take formal decisions on the attached report.  
 
 
 

 

13. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 

 That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 2, Access to Information 
Procedure rules of the Constitution. 
 

 

14. LEA SCHOOL GOVERNOR APPOINTMENTS  
 

8.25 

 EXECUTIVE DECISION 
 
Members to take formal decisions on the attached report.  
 

 

 
Date:  Tuesday 11 January 2011 
 



  
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
CONTACT: Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer, Tel: 020 7525 
7234 or email: beverley.olamijulo@southwark.gov.uk  
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION 

On request, agendas and reports will be supplied to members of the 
public, except if they contain confidential or exempted information. 

 

ACCESSIBLE MEETINGS  

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  For 
further details on building access, translation and interpreting services, 
the provision of signers and other access requirements, please contact 
the Constitutional Officer. 

Disabled members of the public, who wish to attend community council 
meetings and require transport assistance in order to attend, are 
requested to contact the Constitutional Officer. The Constitutional 
Officer will try to arrange transport to and from the meeting. There will 
be no charge to the person requiring transport. Please note that it is 
necessary to contact us as far in advance as possible, and at least 
three working days before the meeting.  

 

BABYSITTING/CARERS’ ALLOWANCES 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look 
after your children or an elderly or disabled dependant, so that you can 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  
Please collect a claim form from the Constitutional Officer at the 
meeting.  

 
DEPUTATIONS 
Deputations provide the opportunity for a group of people who are 
resident or working in the borough to make a formal representation of 
their views at the meeting. Deputations have to be regarding an issue 
within the direct responsibility of the Council. For further information on 
deputations, please contact the Constitutional Officer.  
 
 

For a large print copy of this pack, 
please telephone 020 7525 7234.  
 
 

 

Agenda Annex
1



Rotherhithe Community Council

Language Needs
If you would like information on the Community Councils translated into your
language please telephone 020 7525 7234 or visit the officers at 160 Tooley
Street, London SE1 2TZ

Spanish:

Necesidades de Idioma
Si usted desea información sobre los Municipios de la Comunidad traducida a
su idioma por favor llame al 020 7525 7234 o visite a los oficiales de 160 Tooley
Street, Londres SE1 2TZ

Arabic:

020 7525 7234Tooley Street 160
LondonSE1 2TZ

Portuguese:

Necessidades de Linguagem
Se você gostaria de informação sobre Community Councils (Concelhos
Comunitários) traduzida para sua língua, por favor, telefone para 020 7525 7234
ou visite os oficiais em 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

French:

Besoins de Langue
Si vous désirez obtenir des renseignements sur les Community Councils traduits
dans votre langue, veuillez appeler le 020 7525 7234 ou allez voir nos agents à
160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Polish:

adresem 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

2



Cantonese:

020 7525 7234 160

Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Turkish:

Twi:

Kasaa ohohia,
se wopese wo hu nsem fa Community Councils ho a, sesa saakasa yie ko wo
kuro kasa mu. wo be tumi afre saa ahoma torofo yie 020 7525 7234 anase ko sra
inpanyinfo wo 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2Tz.

3



1 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Wednesday 8 December 2010 
 

 

ROTHERHITHE COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES of the Rotherhithe Community Council held on Wednesday 8 December 
2010 at 7.00 pm at Bacon's College, Timber Pond Road, Rotherhithe, London SE16 
6AT  
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Jeff Hook (Chair) 

Councillor Columba Blango 
Councillor David Hubber 
Councillor Richard Livingstone 
Councillor Catherine McDonald 
Councillor Paul Noblet 
Councillor Michael Situ 
 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

Forid Ahmed, Neighbourhood Coordinator 
Gill Kelly, Community Council Development Officer  
Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer  

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME 
 

 

 The chair welcomed members of the public, councillors and officers to the community 
council meeting. 
 

2. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Lisa Rajan and Wilma Nelson.   
 
Councillor Catherine McDonald submitted her apologies for lateness. 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 None were declared. 
 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 
 

 

 There were none. 
 

5. MINUTES 
 

 

Agenda Item 5
4



2 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Wednesday 8 December 2010 
 

 RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2010 be agreed as a correct record 
of the meeting, and signed by the chair. 
 

6. FEEDBACK FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

 

 The following issues were highlighted at the meeting: 
 
Fish Farm, Southwark 
 
A local resident mentioned that £80,000 of cleaner greener safer funding was allocated to 
the Fish Farm, Southwark Park which was to clear the site and bring it back into use.  It 
appears under the current spending review the proposal has now been shelved. 
 
It has also been mentioned that other CGS schemes in the area would no longer go ahead 
under this review.     
 
Those present asked if assurances could be given that the site in question would not be 
sold to developers and the possibility of other CGS schemes being withdrawn. 
 
Cllr Richard Livingstone explained that there is no intention to sell the site.  
 
A resident suggested this should be brought back into Southwark Park and should  be 
referred to as ‘the Nursery’ and not the Fish Farm. 
 
Highways and Lighting/Traffic 
 
Richard Harris from Environment and Housing reported that site inspections and work on 
designs could take up to 3 weeks because of the Christmas holidays.  Therefore the 
timetable for works to commence would be between 6 – 10 weeks. 
 
Albion Street  
 
Richard Harris: Encourage residents to join the Steering Group to move proposals forward 
for Albion Street.  The officer stated that in light of feedback from the workshops the 
Council officers are holding discussions with the Norwegian Church.  Officers are hoping 
to move forward with the idea of opening a market in the area to encourage people to use 
the street. 
 
Public toilets 
 
Requests have been made for a compulsory purchase which is generally for larger 
schemes which the officer has agreed to pursue under the devolved powers of community 
councils particularly as the issue of toilets has been an ongoing problem in the Borough. 
Unfortunately there are no plans to re-open any that have been closed.  
 
Trees along Pavements 
 
The Council maintains a programme of dates etc on tree pruning – this information   is 

5



3 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Wednesday 8 December 2010 
 

available to view on the Council’s website.  Generally decisions about cutting or keeping 
trees could be difficult.  As this issue has been overlooked for sometime now  the proposal 
is to produce a rolling programme of dates.  
 
Public question 
 
A local resident referred to item 12, of the minutes which a public question that raised 
about the allocation of the cleaner greener safer funding being used to transfer statutes 
from the Heygate to Southwark Park. Apparently this project should have been completed 
twelve months ago. 
 
AGREED: 
 
Officers to provide to a future community council a list of all CGS projects that have been 
successfully completed or are yet to be completed. 
 
Thames Water presentation  
 
There were some inaccuracies in the Thames presentation given at community council on 
8 November 2010, these were highlighted as follows: 
 
• Phase two consultation is scheduled for summer 2011, not January 2011. 
  
• Thames Water realised that some customers were omitted from their original mailing, 

they sent new letters out immediately so they could be included in the phase one 
consultation and not have to wait until phase 2.  

 
• Since the November meeting, Thames Water also announced the closing date for 

phase one comments was extended to 14 January 2011.  
  

7. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY) 
 

 

 None were received at this meeting. 
 

8. CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNITY PRESENTATIONS 
 

 

 Members noted the following announcements: 
 
• The United St Saviour’s Charity are operating two grant making programmes – small 

and large grants. The focus of both programmes is to bring positive benefits to improve 
the lives of residents of North Southwark and Bermondsey and areas close by.  
Applications are available from the Charity’s website  http://www.ustsc.org.uk   

 
Completed applications should be returned to Michael Juffs, United St Saviour’s  
Charity, St Saviour’s House, 39-41 Union Street, London SE1 1SD, email:  
michael.juffs@ustsc.org.uk          

• Consultation on the Dog Fouling Control order, information was available at the 
meeting. 

 

6



4 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Wednesday 8 December 2010 
 

Community presentations: 
 
Jonathan from the Bubble Theatre was present to show the Blitz Film which was made in 
May 2010 and the voices of those who narrated their experiences were taken from actual 
interviews.  They referred to the 1940 bombings, air raid shelters, and the Anderson 
shelter and the bombing of hospitals that included a maternity ward. 
 
Representatives from Time and talents spoke about the role of the Association and what 
they offer the local community.  Most of the work involves intergenerational work where 
young and older people interact with each other, some of this is done through the mosaic 
project.  
 
The presenter responded to questions. 
   

9. COMMUNITY SAFETY UPDATES 
 

 

 The community council noted the safer neighbourhood teams updates on community 
safety matters.   
 
The SNT representative reported that there would be some changes to the police 
boundaries and the Police safer neighbourhood teams might be merging.  Further 
information about these proposals were circulated at the meeting and people were urged 
to complete the questionnaire about neighbourhood policing. 
 
The priorities for Surrey Docks ward are burglary, smart water targeting and robbery. 
Arrests were made and stolen property returned back to the owners.  It was mentioned 
that a PCSO was commended for arresting a suspect. Other priorities include targeting 
drug dealing and motor theft, the Police have been leafleting Surrey Quays Shopping 
Centre. 
 
The SNT representative responded to questions about various scams from individuals 
claiming to be from a courier company.  Although no reports were given to the police, 
people were advised to be on their guard.  He also said anyone interested in receiving 
training for the speed guns or motor plate reading, a device to track down speeding 
motorists should contact the traffic unit at Southwark Police Station.  
 
Further updates would be given at a future meeting. 
  

10. YOUTH COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
 

 

 Farhan Ghafoor, a Rotherhithe youth worker and three representatives from the Surrey 
Docks adventure playground project were present at the meeting to highlight some facts 
about teenage pregnancy. 
 
They provided information about: 
 
• Abortion facts, teen pregnancy rate in 2008 - considered the fifth highest in the 

developed world. 
 

7



5 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Wednesday 8 December 2010 
 

• The kind of information available for a young person who decides to keep their baby.  
This includes seeing a GP, get a check up what role the parents would play and the 
support network available to them. 

 
The chair and Cllr Catherine McDonald, cabinet member for children’s services thanked 
the representatives for their presentation.  
 

11. SOUTHWARK PENSIONERS CENTRE 
 

 

 Neil White from the Southwark Pensioners Centre was present to talk about the role of the 
centre which was set up in 1987 and based in Camberwell, SE5.  The project works with 
other pensioner groups across the borough, provide administrative support, offer room hire 
at the centre and training courses for older people.  Many of the users are from 
Camberwell, Walworth, Dulwich and Peckham. 
 
The centre offers advice on writing out wills and debt advice and publishes a monthly 
newsletter which many consider a valuable source of information.  The centre also offers 
excursion trips and monthly shopping trips and work alongside other voluntary groups. 
 
They run an extensive range of activities a few days a week which includes a well 
attended dance and fitness class at the Aylesbury centre and ICT classes.  In addition look 
at health and wellbeing by working in conjunction with health organisations. 
 
Neil explained that the lease on the premises runs out next year but eventually he would  
like to see a pensioners hub that could provide a whole raft of services for older people.   
He concluded by stating that there needs to be more joined up and cross border working.  
It is likely that the lease would be renewed for a further 12 months. 
A few residents asked about the old Library which they said could be used as a 
intergenerational hub for both young and older people.  The response was once the new 
Library opens as part of the Canada Water regeneration the old Library would be sold, this 
situation remains unchanged. 
 
The meeting were informed that Time and Talents has a ICT suite which members can 
attend if they are also members of the Bermondsey and Rotherhithe Partnership Board.   
 
The meeting were also told  the Pumphouse Museum would be looking at a memory cafe 
for those who suffer dementia.   
 
The chair thanked the presenter for attending the meeting. 
 

12. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 

 

 The following public questions were submitted: 
 
Q1: Old Library, Albion Street – please can you tell residents who is likely to move there? 
 
A1: The old Library would be put up for sale even though work is still going on around the 
library.  One of the options which has been considered is to have a Scandinavian market. 
 

8



6 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Wednesday 8 December 2010 
 

Q2: Do we know who the buyer would be and does the Council have a remit on its use – 
that is would it be considered for community use?   
 
A2: Those community groups that have an expressed interest need to go through the 
planning process regarding change of use. 
 
Q3: If the old Library is being sold off what about BEC Ltd - adult education centre? 
 
A3: The Council are working with Morley College, so negotiations are taking place and 
BEC would be given notice if the old Library is sold off.  
 
Q4: What is the current situation with Odessa Street? 
 
A4. The plan is to re-develop Odessa Street, accommodation for the users and building is 
yet to be decided.  
 

 Meeting ended at 9.30 pm 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 

 

9



  

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council 
 

Public question form: 
 

 
Your name: 
 
 
Your mailing address: 
 
 
 
What is your question? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please give to Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer, Forid Ahmed, Neighbourhood 
Coordinator or Gill Kelly, Community Council Development Officer  
 

 

Agenda Item 8
10



 

 
 
 

1 

  

 
Item No.  
12 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
20 January 
2011 

Meeting Name: 
Rotherhithe Community Council 
 

Report title: 
 

Local parking amendments (Q3) 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All wards within Rotherhithe Community Council 

From: 
 

Senior Engineer, Network Development 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 
1. It is recommended that the following local parking amendments, detailed in the 

appendices to this report, are approved for implementation subject to the outcome 
of any necessary statutory procedures: 

 
2. Timber Pond Road – proposed at any time waiting restrictions 
 
3. Devon Street & Devonshire Grove – proposed parking restrictions as part of the 

Old Kent Road Integrated Waste Management Facility (IWMF) 
 
4. Hawkstone Road – proposed loading only bay and extension of waiting restrictions 
 
5. Silver Walk – proposed waiting restrictions (at any time and Thursday 7am-12 

noon) 
 
6. Rotherhithe Street – proposed at any time restrictions 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
7. This report presents proposals for a number of local parking amendment schemes, 

which are matters reserved to Community Council for decision.    
 
8. The origins and reasons for the proposals are discussed in the main body of the 

report.  
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
Timber Pond Road (1011Q3032) – Proposed at any time waiting restrictions 
 
9. The network development team received a complaint in October 2010 from a 

resident concerning parking outside Bacon’s College, Timber Park Road. 
 
10. Concerns were raised that obstructive parking is taking place in Timber Pond Road 

on the 90 degree bend causing visibility problems for both motorists and 
pedestrians. It is understood that there is a particular parking problem during the 
drop off / pick up times. 

 
11. To ensure that vehicle access is maintained at all times and pedestrian and 

motorist visibility is not obscured, it is recommended that at any time waiting 
restrictions be installed on the bend in Timber Pond Road as shown in Appendix 1. 

 

Agenda Item 12
11



 

 
 
 

2 

  

 
 
Devon Street & Devonshire Grove (1011Q3013) – Proposed parking restrictions 
as part of the Old Kent Road Integrated Waste Management Facility (IWMF) 
 
12. Southwark Council's planning committee has granted permission for Veolia 

Environmental Services to build an Integrated Waste Management Facility (IWMF) 
at the former gas works site on Old Kent Road. 

 
13. The network development team were requested by the Principal Highway 

Engineers working on the scheme to evaluate, design and consult upon and 
appropriate waiting restrictions for the public highway approach and exit roads in 
the immediate area of the IWMF. 

 
14. To enable the IWMF to work effectively some modifications are required to the 

road network, including: 
  

• Construction of a new road. This public highway will provide the exit road from 
the IWMF onto Old Kent Road. 

• Installation of a one-way traffic system. Vehicles will enter “in” via Devon Street 
and “out” via the new road. 

• Installation of a “no motor vehicles” restriction in Devonshire Grove. This will 
prohibit motor vehicles from driving through Devonshire Grove from a point 
approximately 30m north-west of Old Kent Road to its junction with Devon 
Street. 

 
15. For the avoidance of any doubt this report relates only to the proposed changes to 

parking restrictions.  
 
16. To ensure that the expected increase in vehicular traffic can pass along Devon 

Street and the new exit road without obstruction or tail-backs, the network 
development team initially proposed: 

 
• At any time waiting restrictions – Devon Street and the new exit road 

The installation of at any time waiting restrictions (double yellow lines) to 
ensure that vehicle access to and from the Integrated Waste Management 
Facility site is maintained at all times. 
 

• Parking places – Devon Street 
A section of Devon Street will remain unrestricted to enable parking for 
businesses and its visitors 

 
17. Consultation was carried out with all premises on Devon Street and the section of 

properties on Old Kent Road between Devon Street and Sylvan Grove (26 
properties) by way of a consultation document and proposal map. 

 
18. The consultation document (Appendix 2) was posted to the properties on Friday 26 

November 2010 and ran for a 3 week period closing on Friday 17 December 2010. 
 
19. Five individuals emailed during the consultation period. One letter was received 

after the consultation had closed (probably caused by SE1 postal delays during 
adverse weather recently experienced) and has therefore been duly considered. 
Those responding to the consultation are summarised in the following table: 

 

12



 

 
 
 

3 

  

Stakeholder type Response company Address Category 

Occupier Murco Petroleum Ltd Old Kent Road Query 
Freeholder (for Units 
1-7, Devon Street) 

Rich Investments Ltd 43 Portland Road,  
W11 4LJ 

Objection 

Occupier Redcoat Express Ltd. Unit 2, Devon Street Objection 
Occupier Belgravia Mirror & 

Glass Specialists 
Unit 1, Devon Street Objection 

Solicitor (for Unit 1) Jones Day (Planning 
Lawyers) 

21 Tudor Street, 
London, EC4Y 0DJ 

Objection 

Occupier Annely Juda Fine Art Unit 5, Devon Street Objection 
 
20. Five of the six pieces of correspondence objected to the proposals. One was an 

enquiry seeking clarity on highway extents adjacent to the Murco fuel station. 
 
21. A considerable number of points were raised in the numerous emails between 

stakeholders and officers. Officers have attempted to answer (or seek answers from 
the Principal Highway Engineers where the matter related to an already established 
attribute of the scheme) each query raised. 

 
22. Of the points raised, that related to the proposed parking arrangements, the primary 

concern and objection was that waiting restrictions outside Units Nos. 1 to 5 would 
prevent the occupiers of the units from operating their businesses effectively.  The 
point being made was that the units took deliveries and had collections of bulky 
shipments.  

 
23. Waiting restrictions (double yellow lines) do allow for loading and unloading to take 

place but not parking. This is an established allowance on the public highway in the 
UK. Southwark parking services allow goods vehicles to load and unload without limit 
on any yellow line (where no loading ban is in operation), provided this activity is 
continuous. 

 
24. However, stakeholders in the consultation made clear that they did not consider 

yellow lines to be suitable. 
 
25. The matter has been discussed with the Principal Highway Engineers and a revised 

proposal prepared.  The revision to the design ensures that yellow lines will not be 
installed outside Units Nos. 1 to 5 but, instead, a continuous ‘loading only’ bay will be 
installed. The bay would operate at all times and without a maximum stay limit.  

 
26. It is intended that the provision of a loading bay would ensure that vehicles did not 

obstruct each unit’s dropped kerb entrance (that may be caused by unlimited parking) 
and would provide a facility for loading and loading to take place; thus facilitating the 
daily operations of the local businesses. This arrangement already exists in the 
London Borough of Southwark adjacent to other commercial/industrial premises in 
Raymouth Road, Elephant Road, Camberwell Station Road and Druid Street and has 
proved to be a successful initiative. 

 
27. Based on officer recommendations and feedback from the consultation, its is 

recommended to proceed to statutory consultation on the proposed at any time 
waiting restrictions, unrestricted free parking places and loading bay in Devon 
Street and the new exit road as shown in appendix 3. 

 
Hawkstone Road (1011Q2029) – Proposed Loading only Bay 
 
28. The network development team received correspondence from a local business in 

13



 

 
 
 

4 

  

July 2010 concerning the lack of available loading opportunity outside their 
premises on Lower Road.  

 
29. An engineer from network development visited this location to ascertain the loading 

availability and to locate possible options for loading to the businesses.. 
 
30. Lower Road is a primary road and at the location where the business is located 

there are existing “at any time” waiting and loading restrictions. The highway is too 
narrow to support a 2.7m wide loading bay. On further inspection the engineer 
feels the only option is to locate the loading only bay on Hawkstone Road. 

 
31. The proposal will result in the loss of 4 existing pay and display spaces through the 

introduction of a 10m Loading only bay and 10m of “at any time” waiting restriction. 
The extension to the waiting restrictions is required as the large, mature tree on the 
footway would otherwise prevent loading and unloading taking place and make an 
adjacent loading bay unusable. 

 
32. To ensure that there is loading availability for the local businesses it is 

recommended that a 10m Loading only bay and 10m of “at any time waiting” 
restrictions be installed on Hawkstone Road as shown in Appendix 4. 

  
Silver Walk (1011Q2001) – Proposed at any time and Thursday 7am- 12 Noon 
waiting restrictions 
 
33. The network development team received a complaint in May 2010 from Silver Walk 

management concerning parking Silver Walk and in particular outside the entrance 
to the underground car park. 

 
34. An engineer from network development and a representative from Silver Walk 

management visited this location to ascertain the requirements for waiting 
restrictions. 

 
35. The engineer noted that a number of vehicles were parked near the garage 

entrance making it difficult to enter and leave. It was explained that this becomes 
more of an issue in the evening and at weekends. 

 
36. It was further identified that the current parking activity prevents large (waste or 

emergency service vehicles) proceeding along this cul-de-sac due the narrowness 
of the road. 

 
37. The engineer also spoke the landlady of The Clipper public house who explained 

they receive their dray delivery on a Thursday morning. 
 
38. Care has been taken to keep the length of the restrictions to a minimum so as to 

ensure that vehicle access is maintained at all times, pedestrian and motorist 
visibility is not obscured and that the public house can receive deliveries whilst 
attempting to keep as much on-street parking as possible. 

 
39. In view of the above it is recommended that at any time and Thursday 7am-12 

Noon waiting restrictions be installed on Silver Walk as shown in Appendix 5. 
 
Rotherhithe Street (1011Q2044) – Proposed at any time restrictions 
 
40. Transport for London, in conjunction with Southwark officers, carried out a 

14



 

 
 
 

5 

  

complete route test of the bus service C10 on 16 November 2010.  
 
41. The bus route runs between Canada Water bus station and Victoria Station 
 
42. The purpose of the test was to evaluate the suitability of new 10.2m buses on the 

route and to look at any problems that the additional rear door may cause. 
 
43. The route is currently operated with 8.8m single door, single deck buses with 

additional short workings between Canada Water and Elephant and Castle using 
10.2m dual door, single deck buses 

 
44. The change in bus type (along the whole route during all service hours) to a 10.2m 

bus is as a result of a change in contract of the bus route operator. This will 
commence on 19 March 2011. 

 
45. A number of locations were identified along the whole route where changes were 

required however only two locations relate to Southwark. 
 
46. The first location relates to the turn from Salter Road into Rotherhithe Street 

around the junction and traffic island.  It is noted that this location has previously 
been identified by residents and officers.  Additional double yellow lines were 
approved by the community council and are pending implementation.  

 
47. The second location is Rotherhithe Street between the junctions of Bryan Road 

and Salter Road, close to Surrey Docks Farm. 
 
48. A second site visit was conducted on 7 January 2011 and it was observed that the 

current absence of parking restrictions on the south, south-east and east side of 
the road (approximately outside No. 311 to 315 Rotherhithe Street) results in 
opportunity for vehicles to park on the bend. 

 
49. Irrespective of bus route changes, this poses a road safety danger as vehicles 

(proceeding south-westward) must overtake parked cars in the middle of the road 
and on a blind bend. 

 
50. Furthermore, to assist the flow of two-way traffic with the new bus it is considered 

that parking should be prevented.  The location has been reported by bus route 
drivers (and London Buses performance team) as a current problem, though 
mostly occurring at weekends.  

 
51. Whilst the problem is reportedly more frequent at weekends (possibly attributed to 

visitors to Surrey Docks Farm) it is clearly an obstructive and potentially unsafe 
location to park at any time. 

 
52. In view of the above and with particular regard to road safety and the unobstructed 

movement of traffic it is recommended that at any time waiting restrictions be 
installed on the bend in and to the junction with Salter Road, as shown in Appendix 
6. 

 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
53. The recommendations contained within this report are consistent with the 

polices of the PEP and associated Local Implementation Plan (LIP) 

15



 

 
 
 

6 

  

 
54. The proposals will support the council’s equalities and human rights policies and 

will promote social inclusion by:  
 

• providing improved access for emergency vehicles, buses, refuge vehicles, 
residents and visitors; 

• improving sight lines for all road users;  
• improving junction and pedestrian safety, especially those with limited mobility 

or visual impairment; and 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT 
 
55. The policies within the Parking and Enforcement Plan are upheld within this report 

have been subject to an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA). 
 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

 
56. All costs arising from implementing the proposals, as set out in the report, will be 

fully contained within the existing local parking amendment budget. 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
57. Where informal consultation has already been carried out this is discussed in the 

key issues section of the report. 
 
58. Should the community council approve these items, statutory consultation will take 

place as part of the making of the traffic management order.  A proposal notice will 
be erected in proximity to the site location and a press notice will be published in 
the Southwark News and London Gazette.  If there are objections a further report 
will be re-submitted to the community council for determination. 

 
59. The Road Network and Parking Manager has been consulted on the proposals and 

has no objections. 
 
60. No consultation or comment has been sought from the Borough Solicitor & 

Secretary or the Chief Finance Officer. 
 
 

16



 

 
 
 

1 

  

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Parking and Enforcement Plan Network development, 

Environment and 
Housing Department 

Tim Walker 
020 7525 2021 

 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Timber Pond Road – proposed at any time waiting restrictions 
Appendix 2 
Appendix 3 

Devon Street & Devonshire Grove – proposed parking restrictions as 
part of the Old Kent Road Integrated Waste Management Site 
(IWMS) 

Appendix 4 Hawkstone Road – proposed Loading only bay 
Appendix 5 Silver Walk – “at any time” and Thursday 7am – 12 Noon waiting 

restrictions 
Appendix 6 Rotherhithe Street –proposed at any time restrictions 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Lead Officer Tim Walker, Senior Engineer 
Report Author Paul Gellard, Engineer 
Version Final 
Dated 10 January 2011 
Key Decision No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Strategic Director of Communities, Law 
& Governance  

No No 

Finance Director No No 
Parking operations and 
development manager 

No No 

Network manager Yes No 
Parking and network 
management business unit 
manager 

Yes No 

Cabinet Member  No No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional/Scrutiny Team  
 

17



18



‘A
t 

an
y 

ti
m

e’
 w

ai
ti

n
g

 r
es

tr
ic

ti
o

n
s 

A
 d

ou
bl

e 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

 m
ea

ns
 th

at
 n

o 
pa

rk
in

g 
is

 a
llo

w
ed

 a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e.

 P
le

as
e 

re
m

em
be

r 
th

at
:

al
l d

ou
bl

e 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

 r
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 o
pe

ra
te

 2
4 

ho
ur

s 
a 

da
y,

 s
ev

en
 d

ay
s 

a 
w

ee
k,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ba

nk
 h

ol
id

ay
s 

 
yo

u 
m

ay
 s

to
p 

to
 lo

ad
 o

r 
un

lo
ad

 fo
r 

up
 to

 2
0 

m
in

ut
es

 o
n 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s,

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
no

t c
au

si
ng

 a
n 

ob
st

ru
ct

io
n

if 
yo

u 
ar

e 
a 

B
lu

e 
B

ad
ge

 h
ol

de
r 

yo
u 

ar
e 

en
tit

le
d 

to
 p

ar
k 

fo
r 

3 
ho

ur
s 

on
 a

ny
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
at

 y
ou

 a
re

 
no

t c
au

si
ng

 a
 h

az
ar

d 
or

 o
bs

tr
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

th
e 

cl
oc

k 
ca

rd
 is

 d
is

pl
ay

ed
 a

nd
 s

et
 to

 y
ou

r 
tim

e 
of

 a
rr

iv
al

. 
do

ub
le

 y
el

lo
w

 li
ne

s 
ar

e 
si

te
d 

fo
r 

sa
fe

ty
 r

ea
so

ns
, i

n 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 p

ar
ki

ng
 c

ou
ld

 p
os

e 
a 

se
rio

us
 o

bs
tr

uc
tio

n 
to

 
ot

he
r 

ro
ad

 u
se

rs
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

se
rv

ic
es

) 
do

ub
le

 y
el

lo
w

 li
ne

s 
do

 n
ot

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
 ti

m
e 

pl
at

e 
ne

xt
 to

 th
em

 s
ta

tin
g 

th
at

 n
o 

pa
rk

in
g 

is
 a

llo
w

ed
 

ve
hi

cl
es

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

 if
 th

ey
 a

re
 fo

un
d 

to
 b

e 
co

nt
ra

ve
ni

ng
 th

e 
re

st
ric

tio
n 

O
ld

 K
en

t 
R

o
ad

 –
 In

te
g

ra
te

d
 W

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

F
ac

ili
ty

 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 w

ai
ti

n
g

, l
o

ad
in

g
, p

re
sc

ri
b

ed
 r

o
u

te
 p

ro
je

ct
 s

co
p

e 

N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
01

0

H
o

w
 c

an
 I 

h
av

e 
m

y 
sa

y?
 

It 
is

 v
er

y 
im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t t

hi
s 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

ac
cu

ra
te

ly
 r

ef
le

ct
s 

th
e 

vi
ew

s 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 b

us
in

es
se

s.
 W

e 
w

on
’t 

kn
ow

 
w

ha
t y

ou
 th

in
k 

un
le

ss
 y

ou
 te

ll 
us

.

S
ho

ul
d 

yo
u 

w
is

h 
to

 m
ak

e 
an

y 
co

m
m

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 r
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 s
ho

w
n 

ov
er

le
af

, p
le

as
e 

do
 s

o 
by

 w
rit

in
g 

to
 

us
 a

nd
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

en
cl

os
ed

 F
re

ep
os

t e
nv

el
op

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

r 
by

 e
m

ai
lin

g 
pa

rk
in

gr
ev

ie
w

@
so

ut
hw

ar
k.

go
v.

uk

P
le

as
e 

pr
ov

id
e 

yo
ur

 n
am

e 
an

d 
fu

ll 
ad

dr
es

s 
on

 a
ny

 c
or

re
sp

on
de

nc
e.

 

C
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 c
lo

se
s:

 F
ri

d
ay

 1
7 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
0 

W
h

at
 h

ap
p

en
s 

n
ex

t?
 

O
nc

e 
w

e 
ha

ve
 ta

ke
n 

in
to

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

he
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n,
 a

 fi
na

l d
es

ig
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 
R

ot
he

rh
ith

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
1.

 

A
s 

yo
u 

w
ill

 a
pp

re
ci

at
e,

 S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
ou

nc
il 

re
ce

iv
es

 m
an

y 
co

m
m

en
ts

 fr
om

 c
on

su
lta

tio
ns

 a
nd

 w
e 

ar
e 

th
er

ef
or

e 
un

ab
le

 to
 r

es
po

nd
 p

er
so

na
lly

 to
 e

ac
h 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.
 H

ow
ev

er
 a

ll 
co

m
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
ug

ge
st

io
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
be

fo
re

 a
 fi

na
l d

ec
is

io
n 

is
 m

ad
e.

 

F
or

 fu
rt

he
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 h

ow
 a

nd
 w

he
re

 to
 p

ar
k 

in
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
pl

ea
se

 v
is

it 
w

w
w

.s
ou

th
w

ar
k.

go
v.

uk
/p

ar
ki

ng

T
o

 a
rr

an
g

e 
a 

tr
an

sl
at

io
n

 o
f 

th
is

 le
af

le
t 

p
le

as
e 

ta
ke

 it
 t

o
:

O
n

e 
S

to
p

 S
h

o
p

 –
 1

22
 P

ec
kh

am
 H

ill
 S

tr
ee

t,
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 S

E
15

, o
r

O
n

e 
S

to
p

 S
h

o
p

 –
 1

51
 W

al
w

o
rt

h
 R

o
ad

, L
o

n
d

o
n

 S
E

17
, o

r 
 

O
n

e 
S

to
p

 S
h

o
p

 –
 1

7 
S

p
a 

R
o

ad
, L

o
n

d
o

n
 S

E
16

, o
r

S
o

u
th

w
ar

k 
T

o
w

n
 H

al
l –

 P
ec

kh
am

 R
o

ad
, L

o
n

d
o

n
 S

E
5.

  

D
ea

r 
re

si
d

en
t,

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

o
w

n
er

/o
cc

u
p

ie
r,

 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

on
-s

tr
ee

t p
ar

ki
ng

 fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
 to

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d
 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

om
m

itt
ee

 h
as

 g
ra

nt
ed

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 fo
r 

V
eo

lia
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 b

ui
ld

 
an

 In
te

gr
at

ed
 W

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ac
ili

ty
 (

IW
M

F
) 

at
 th

e 
fo

rm
er

 g
as

 w
or

ks
 s

ite
 o

n 
O

ld
 K

en
t R

oa
d.

  

T
he

 fa
ci

lit
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
te

d 
by

 V
eo

lia
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f t

he
 c

ou
nc

il.
 It

 w
ill

 p
la

y 
a 

ce
nt

ra
l r

ol
e 

in
 h

el
pi

ng
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 th

at
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k'
s 

w
as

te
 h

as
 o

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t. 
 It

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h'
s 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
le

ve
ls

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

di
ve

rt
in

g 
m

os
t o

f t
he

 w
as

te
 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
ha

ve
 g

on
e 

to
 la

nd
fil

l. 

T
o 

en
ab

le
 th

e 
IW

M
F

 to
 w

or
k 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

so
m

e 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 a

re
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 th

e 
ro

ad
 n

et
w

or
k.

  T
he

se
 

ch
an

ge
s 

ar
e 

sh
ow

n 
on

 th
e 

en
cl

os
ed

 p
la

n 
an

d 
su

m
m

ar
is

ed
 a

s:
 

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 r
oa

d.
 T

hi
s 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ig
hw

ay
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
ex

it 
ro

ad
 fr

om
 

th
e 

IW
M

F
 o

nt
o 

O
ld

 K
en

t R
oa

d.
 

 
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 o

ne
-w

ay
 tr

af
fic

 s
ys

te
m

. V
eh

ic
le

s 
w

ill
 e

nt
er

 “
in

” 
vi

a 
D

ev
on

 S
tr

ee
t 

an
d 

“o
ut

” 
vi

a 
th

e 
ne

w
 r

oa
d.

 
 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 a

 “
no

 m
ot

or
 v

eh
ic

le
s”

 r
es

tr
ic

tio
n 

in
 D

ev
on

sh
ire

 G
ro

ve
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
pr

oh
ib

it 
m

ot
or

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
fr

om
 d

riv
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ev
on

sh
ire

 G
ro

ve
 fr

om
 a

 p
oi

nt
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
30

m
 n

or
th

-w
es

t o
f O

ld
 K

en
t R

oa
d 

to
 it

s 
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 D

ev
on

 S
tr

ee
t.

W
h

at
 a

re
 w

e 
co

n
su

lt
in

g
 u

p
o

n
?

A
dd

iti
on

al
 to

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, w

e 
ne

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 v

eh
ic

ul
ar

 tr
af

fic
 c

an
 

pa
ss

 a
lo

ng
 D

ev
on

 S
tr

ee
t a

nd
 th

e 
ne

w
 e

xi
t r

oa
d 

w
ith

ou
t o

bs
tr

uc
tio

n 
or

 ta
il-

ba
ck

s.
 

W
e 

w
an

t t
o 

kn
ow

 if
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

an
y 

co
m

m
en

ts
 u

po
n 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

 r
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 in
 D

ev
on

 S
tr

ee
t a

nd
 th

e 
ex

it 
ro

ad
.  

In
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

ki
ng

 r
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

. 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 a
re

 s
ho

w
n 

on
 th

e 
en

cl
os

ed
 p

la
n 

an
d 

su
m

m
ar

is
ed

 a
s:

 

1)
 

A
t 

an
y 

ti
m

e 
w

ai
ti

n
g

 r
es

tr
ic

ti
o

n
s 

– 
D

ev
o

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
an

d
 t

h
e 

n
ew

 e
xi

t 
ro

ad
 

T
he

 in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 a

t a
ny

 ti
m

e 
w

ai
tin

g 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 (
do

ub
le

 y
el

lo
w

 li
ne

s)
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 v
eh

ic
le

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

nd
 fr

om
 th

e 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t F
ac

ili
ty

 s
ite

 is
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
at

 a
ll 

tim
es

. 

2)
 

P
ar

ki
n

g
 p

la
ce

s 
– 

D
ev

o
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

A
 s

ec
tio

n 
of

 D
ev

on
 S

tr
ee

t w
ill

 r
em

ai
n 

un
re

st
ric

te
d 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
fo

r 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
nd

 it
s 

vi
si

to
rs

 

P
u

b
lic

 R
ea

lm
 –

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 H

ou
si

ng
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t, 
P

O
 B

ox
 6

45
29

, L
on

do
n 

S
E

1P
 5

LX
 

S
w

it
ch

b
o

ar
d

 –
 0

20
 7

52
5 

20
00

  W
eb

si
te

 –
 w

w
w

.s
ou

th
w

ar
k.

go
v.

uk
C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 –
 A

nn
ie

 S
he

pp
er

d 

19



20



21



22



23



24



MEMBERS & EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/11 

COUNCIL:  ROTHERHITHE COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
NOTE: Original held by Community Councils Unit; amendments to Beverley Olamijulo 
(tel: 020 7525 7234) 
 

OPEN COPIES OPEN COPIES 

 
Councillor Jeff Hook (Chair)                               1 
Councillor Wilma Nelson (vice Chair)                 1 
Councillor Columba Blango                                1 
Councillor Michael Situ                                       1 
Councillor Richard Livingstone                           1 
Councillor David Hubber                   1  
Councillor Paul Noblet                                        1 
Councillor Catherine McDonald                          1 
Councillor Lisa Rajan                                          1 
 
 
Constitutional Support Officer 60 
 
 
MEMBERS OF PARLIAMENT 
Simon Hughes, M.P. 1 
Harriet Harman, M.P. 1 
 
                                             
LIBRARIES 3 
Local Studies Library 1 
 
PRESS: 
Southwark News                                                 1        
South London Press                                           1                  
 
EXTERNAL   
Community Action Southwark                            1 
Hannibal House, 8th floor 
Elephant & Castle, London SE1 6TE 
                                                 
 

 
 
Chief Superintendent / 
Borough Commander 
Southwark Police Station 
323 Borough High Street 
London SE1 1JL                                            2 
 
 
Geoffrey Banister                                          1 
LBS Audit Manager 
1st Floor, Tooley Street  
 
 
TRADE UNIONS 
UNISON Office Southwark                           1 
Roy Fielding, GMB/APEX                             1 
Mike Young TGWU/ACTS                            1   
Tony O’Brien, UCATT                                   1 
 
NEIGHBOURHOOD HOUSING OFFICE 
Rotherhithe Area Housing Office 
153-159 Abbeyfield Road SE16 2LS            1 
 
 
TOTAL DISTRIBUTION                         90 
 
Dated: 11 January 2011 

 


	Agenda
	
	Languages

	5 Minutes
	8 Public Question Time
	12 Local Parking amendments
	Appendix 1 - map for Timber Pond Road
	Appendix 2 - consultation
	Appendix 3  - revised proposal
	Appendix 4 - map for Hawkstone Road
	Appendix 5 - map for Silver Walk
	Appendix 6 - map for Rotherhithe Street

	

